# AMENDED AND RESTATED BYLAWS FRIENDS OF THE MONTECITO LIBRARY BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDATION TO FOML MEMBERSHIP NOVEMBER 9, 2023

#### **ARTICLE I: NAME & OFFICES**

- **1.1 NAME**. The name of this Corporation as set forth in the Articles of Incorporation is the Montecito Friends of the Library. Over time and by common usage, this Corporation has also been referred to as the Friends of the Montecito Library (FOML). Any use of the name Friends of the Montecito Library shall be considered as the same reference to the Montecito Friends of the Library.
- **1.2 OFFICES**. The principal office of the Corporation for the transaction of its business shall be fixed and located at the Montecito Library, 1469 East Valley Road in Montecito, California. The Board of Directors of the Corporation ("the Board") is granted full power and authority to change the principal office from one location to another.

### **ARTICLE II: PURPOSES**

- **2.1 GENERAL STATEMENT**. The specific and general purposes of the Friends of the Montecito Library are set forth in the Articles of Incorporation and are controlling.
  - **A.** To foster community awareness, support, and use of the facilities and programs of the Montecito Library and the library system in general.
  - **B.** To sponsor programs designed to add to the cultural life of the community, supporting active library children's program in coordination with existing school and library programs.
  - **C.** To raise funds to support the Montecito Library and specifically to encourage gifts, endowments, and memorials to the Friends of the Montecito Library.
  - **D.** Based on Board approval, financially supplement available funds for library staff, purchases, and related items deemed necessary to sustain a desired level of service and satisfactory hours of operation at the Montecito Library.
  - E. To encourage the introduction and use of developing library technology.
  - **F.** To represent the interest of the Montecito Library in its relations with the various governmental agencies, including the City and County library systems.
  - **G.** To engage in such activities related to the specific and general purposes of the Corporation as may be lawfully authorized by the Board or the members thereof, including but not limited to the adoption of rules and procedures governing the operation of the Corporation that are not in conflict with these Bylaws, the Articles of Incorporation, or governing law.

### ARTICLE III: NONPARTISAN ACTIVITIES AND AVOIDANCE OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST

**3.1 NONPROFIT ACTIVITIES.** The Corporation is governed by the California Nonprofit Public Benefit corporation law for the purposes described above. The Corporation shall be nonprofit and nonpartisan. No substantial part of the activities of the Corporation shall consist of the publication or dissemination of materials with the

purpose of attempting to influence legislation, and the Corporation shall not participate or intervene in any political campaign on behalf of any candidate for public office. The Corporation shall not be involved in any activity that results or supports the private gain of an individual.

### **ARTICLE IV: MEMBERS**

- **4.1 QUALIFICATIONS FOR MEMBERSHIP.** Each membership in the Corporation shall be open to individuals, households and business organizations, acting through their designated representatives, that support the purposes of the Corporation. Businesses may also be corporate sponsors. Any donation to the Friends that equals or exceeds the annual membership fee shall entitle the donor to membership.
- **4.2 DUES.** Annual dues shall be established by the Board and shall qualify each household or business for membership for that calendar year. Dues are payable no later than March 30<sup>th</sup> of each year.

### **ARTICLE V: MEETINGS OF MEMBERS**

- **5.1 ANNUAL MEETING.** The Annual Meeting of Members shall be held during the first half of each calendar year at the Montecito Library at a date and time specified by the Board.
- **5.2 ADDITIONAL MEETINGS.** Additional meetings of the Members may be called by the Board or by written request of no less than ten percent (10%) of the membership.
- **5.3 NOTICE.** Notice of the Annual Meeting and any additional member meetings shall be provided at least twentyone (21) days prior to the meeting date by posting the notice and agenda on the Corporation's website.
- **5.4 QUORUM.** Ten percent (10%) of the paid membership shall constitute a quorum of Members for the transaction of business at any meeting of Members. A quorum may be attained via written proxy from any Member provided to the Board prior to the commencement of the meeting.
- **5.5 PROXIES.** Any Member of the Corporation may give his or her proxy to another Member of the Corporation if he or she is unable to attend a meeting. The proxy may be used to meet quorum requirements and may direct the proxy holder in voting on specific issues and/or any specific issue before the Board. If no such direction is contained in the proxy, the proxy holder may exercise his or her discretion in voting on any matter presented for action. Proxies will automatically be voided by a Member's attendance at a specific meeting, but will remain valid for all other meetings until revoked by the Member, the Member's membership has expired, or the three year term of the proxy expires.
- **5.6 VOTING.** Any matter requiring a vote of the membership shall be conducted by written ballot, unless the requirement is waived by those present. One vote per paid membership, whether an individual, a household or a business. The affirmative vote of the majority of the voting power represented at the meeting, in person or by proxy, shall be required for any measure to pass, unless a greater percentage is required by the California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation Code or by the Articles of this Corporation.

### **ARTICLE VI: DIRECTORS**

6.1 NUMBERS. The Corporation shall have no less than five (5) nor more than fifteen (15) Directors. A majority of the current Board membership shall constitute a quorum for conducting business. The number of Directors approved by the membership at the Annual Meeting shall be the maximum number of Directors for the next year.

- **6.2 POWERS**. Subject to the provisions of the California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation Law and any limitations in these Bylaws and the Articles of Incorporation relating to action required or permitted to be taken or approved by its Members, the activities and affairs of the Corporation shall be conducted and all corporate powers shall be exercised by or under the direction of the Board.
- 6.3 **DUTIES**. It shall be the duty of the Directors to:
  - A. Perform any and all duties imposed on them collectively or individually by law and by these Bylaws.
  - B. Meet at such times and places as required by the Bylaws.
  - C. Register their addresses with the Secretary of the Corporation, and notices of meetings mailed, emailed, texted, or faxed to them at such addresses shall be valid notices thereof.
  - D. Promote the general wellbeing of the Montecito Library.
- 6.4 ELECTION, TERMS AND VACANCIES OF OFFICE. Directors shall be nominated by the Nominating Committee appointed by the President of the Corporation and consisting of two (2) members of the Board. Election to the Board shall be by majority approval of the members at the membership's Annual Meeting. Directors may serve three (3) year terms, unless the membership votes to extend the number of terms for a Director. If a Director fails to attend three consecutive meetings, he or she shall be asked to step down, absent a compelling reason for the absence. Vacancies on the Board may be filled by a majority vote of the Board. A person elected to fill a vacancy as provided in this section shall hold office until the end of the term to which he/she is appointed.
- **6.5 COMPENSATION**. Directors shall serve without compensation except that they shall be allowed reasonable advancement or reimbursement of expenses incurred in the performance of their regular duties.
- **6.6 PLACE AND NOTICE OF OPEN BOARD MEETINGS**. Meetings of Directors shall be held at a place designated by the Board and included in the notice of the meeting that will be posted on the website at least four (4) days prior to any meeting. The agenda includes when and where the meeting is to be held. Virtual and/or in person meetings are permitted as long as they are duly noticed.
- 6.7 MEETINGS. Regular meetings of the Directors shall be held a minimum of four times per year at a day and time to be determined by the majority of the Board and set for the year at the December or January Board meeting. At least four (4) days' notice via email, text, or facsimile shall be provided, unless, in the opinion of the President, the circumstances require urgent action of the Board, in which case notice shall be waived. Copies of the agenda for the Board meeting shall be posted on the Corporation's website.
- **6.8 SPECIAL MEETINGS**. Special meetings of the Board may be called by the President or any three (3) Directors, and such meetings shall be held at the place designated by the person or persons calling the meeting. The same notice requirements shall apply to special meetings.
- **6.9 MAJORITY ACTION AS BOARD ACTION**. Every action or decision done or made by a majority of the Directors present at a meeting duly held at which a quorum is present is the act of the Board.
- **6.10 PROXIES**. Any member of the Board may give his or her proxy to the President or another Board Member (in writing) if he or she is unable to attend a Board meeting. The proxy may be used to meet quorum requirements, and may direct the proxy holder in voting on specific issues. If no such direction is contained in the proxy, the proxy holder may exercise his or her discretion in voting on any matter presented to the Board for action. A proxy will automatically be voided by a Board Member's attendance at a specific meeting, but will remain valid for all other meetings until revoked by the Board Member or the up to three-year term of the proxy expires.

- 6.11 CONDUCT OF MEETINGS. Meetings of the Board shall be presided over by the President or by the Vice-President in the absence of the President. If both are absent, a Director shall be chosen to preside by a majority of the Directors present at the meeting. The Secretary shall act as secretary of all meetings of the Board, or in his/her absence, the presiding officer shall appoint another person to act as secretary of the meeting. Meetings shall be governed by Robert's Rules of Order insofar as such rules are not inconsistent with or in conflict with these Bylaws, with the Articles of Incorporation of this Corporation, or with provisions of law.
- **6.12 ACTION BY UNANIMOUS WRITTEN CONSENT WITHOUT MEETINGS**. Any action required or permitted to be taken by the Board under any provision of law may be taken, without an in person or virtual meeting, if there is unanimous written consent to such actions. Such action by written consent shall have the same force and effect as the majority vote of the Directors at a regular or special meeting.
- **6.13 NON-LIABILITY OF DIRECTORS**. The Directors shall not be personally liable for the debts, liabilities, or other obligations of the Corporation or the Montecito Library.
- **6.14 INSURANCE**. The Board may adopt a resolution authorizing the purchase and maintenance of insurance on behalf of any agent of the Corporation (including a Director, Officer, other agent) against any liability other than for violating the provisions of relating to self-dealing or financially benefiting a Board member.

## **ARTICLE VII: OFFICERS**

- **7.1 POSITIONS.** The Officers of the Corporation shall be a President, a Vice-President, a Secretary, and a Treasurer, each of whom must be a member of the Board. No person may hold more than one office. The Board may appoint assistants to the Officers, who need not be members of the Board, but must be members of the Corporation.
- **7.2 DUTIES.** The Officers shall have the duties and powers normally accorded to officers of a nonprofit public benefit corporation and as described more fully in the Corporation's operating rules, if written and adopted by the Directors.
- **7.3 TERM.** Each Officer shall serve a one (1) year term. No Officer shall be elected for more than three (3) consecutive terms.
- **7.4 ELECTION.** Following the election of Directors at the Annual Meeting of Members, the Board shall elect Officers from among the Directors, both current and newly elected.
- **7.5 VACANCIES.** Any vacancy among the Officers shall be filled for the remainder of the term by the President with the concurrence of the Board. If the presidency is vacant, the Vice President shall fill this role.

#### **ARTICLE VIII: COMMITTEES**

**8.1 COMMITTEES**. The Corporation may create committees from time to time by a resolution of the Board of Directors. Committee membership and responsibilities will be as designated in such resolutions. The Board shall appoint a committee, if needed, to ensure management of the Corporation's assets in accord with the Investment Policy Statement.

#### **ARTICLE IX: FINANCES**

**9.1 FISCAL YEAR**. The fiscal year of the corporation shall begin on the first day of July and end on the last day of June in each year.

- **9.2 SOLICITATION OF FUNDS**. The Board may solicit and accept on behalf of the Corporation any contribution, gift, bequest, or devise for the general purposes or for any special purposes of the Corporation.
- **9.3 ACCOUNTING**. All monies collected and distributed by the Corporation will be maintained in a separate account by the Treasurer in an accredited and FDIC insured banking institution or invested in a manner consistent with nonprofit public benefit corporations and permitted by California law. The Treasurer will present a quarterly accounting of monies received and distributed by the Corporation. Any contractor employed by the Corporation, e.g., a CPA, who signs checks on behalf of the Corporation shall not also have access to the Corporation's investment account.
- **9.4 DEPOSITS**. Deposits of funds collected by the Corporation will be deposited into the Corporation's bank account within five business days of collection.
- **9.5 WITHDRAWALS**. Any withdrawals, payments, or fund transfers in excess of fifteen thousand dollars (\$15,000) shall require written authorization of two Officers of the Corporation. Transfers from the Corporation's checking account to its investment account may be initiated by any officer of the Corporation.

### **ARTICLE X: AMENDMENTS**

**10.1 EFFECTIVENESS OF BYLAWS**. These Bylaws and any subsequent amendments thereto become effective immediately upon their approval by a majority vote of the Membership at a duly noticed meeting of Members. Copies of the proposed Bylaws and any subsequent amendments shall be provided to the membership at least thirty (30) days prior to any vote thereon and shall be posted on the Corporation's website.

### **ARTICLE XI: DISSOLUTION**

**11.1** Upon the dissolution of the Corporation, its assets remaining after payment, or provision for payment, of all debts and liabilities shall be distributed in accordance with the Articles of Incorporation.

Recommended for approval by the Board of Directors on November 9, 2023.

Approved by the Membership on \_\_\_\_\_

Name of Secretary

Signature of Secretary

Date

## FRIENDS OF THE MONTECITO LIBRARY BOARD OF DIRECTORS DRAFT MINUTES OCTOBER 12, 2023

**Attendees -** Zoe Copus, Jeff Donahue (Virtual), Kendra Epley, Melissa Franklin, Kelly Hatchett, Pat Saley and Jason Siemens. Guests were Beate Bjoerklund and new Circulation Supervisor Heather Walsh

- 1. Approval of Minutes September 14, 2023 Attached. Kelly/Zoe Approved 6/0/1 (Jeff abstained)
- 2. Final review of changes to Bylaws Based on comments made by the Board at the Sept. 14<sup>th</sup> meeting, the changes have been made as requested and shown in the attached. The Board agreed with the changes to the committee discussion and having a threshold of \$15,000 for checks that require two officers to authorize in writing. Changes will be made and the bylaws will be up for approval at the November meeting subject to ratification by the membership at the spring Annual Meeting.
- 3. Library report Bea introduced Heather Walsh, the new Circulation Supervisor at the Montecito Library. We discussed her experience and knowledge of Montecito and its library, plus how they might provide info for our upcoming Annual Report. Bringing back Montecito programming, including Stay 'n' Play was also discussed.

## 4. Treasurer's and Finance Report – Kendra Epley

- US Bank (formerly Union Bank) & Beacon Pointe balances. Beacon pointe balance as of 9/30/2023-\$1,255,336.09 US Bank balance as of 9/30/2023-\$42,791.73 Total assets as of 9/30/2023-\$1,298,127.82
- **b.** Set up meeting of Investment Committee with BP Kendra will do this.
- **c.** Shift of some of Treasurer's duties to CPA and his assistant Working on this transition.
- **d.** Draft FOML FY 23/24 budget Board discussed some minor changes with draft budget to return for approval at the November meeting.
- e. Draft IRS Form 990 for approval and submittal Kelly/Jason Unanimous approval for submittal.
- f. Montecito Library budget update We are fully funded for 36 hours.
- **g.** Nov. 2024 ballot includes ACA 1 to change 2/3 vote on special taxes to 55% This measure is only for capital projects but would still indirectly help libraries.
- **h.** Board of Supervisors approval of polling to determine public interest in a sales, parcel or special tax to raise funds for libraries. If the polling is positive, the measure would be on the November 2024 ballot.
- Annual Report Draft of the FY 22/23 Annual Report will be discussed at the next meeting. Ideas include book donations, membership, planned giving, books that ML patrons like, book club books, etc.

### 6. Board miscellaneous:

- a. Updated Board list Attached
- b. Recruitment of new Board members Ongoing.
- c. Spring outreach to elementary schools?

# 7. Marketing & Communications Committee Report

- a. Planned giving campaign Ad in MJ.
- b. Donation Report
- c. MJ monthly column
- **d.** Montecito writers book as gifts to large donors Cost is approx.. \$10/each. Put FOML stickers in them first.
- e. Montecito Beatification Nov 4.

# 8. Future agenda items:

- a. Book donations Coordination with local realtors re book donations.
- b. FOML sponsored Free libraries In addition to free library at East Valley/San Ysidro, suggested new location includes Cold Spring School.
- **c.** 1 page handout for estate planning Kendra will bring samples to the meeting.
- 9. Next meeting dates Thursday, Nov. 9<sup>th</sup> and January 11<sup>th</sup>, 2024, at 10:30 am.
  - Planned giving
  - Annual report
  - Bylaws
  - Budget
  - Membership starting in January & how to roll out
  - Steve Gilbar book for \$500 & up donors available at the library

# FRIENDS OF THE MONTECITO LIBRARY BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING AGENDA Thursday, November 9, 2023 @ 10:30 am Montecito Library

- 1. Approval of Minutes October 12, 2023 <u>Attached</u>.
- 2. Final changes to Bylaws –The Board is being asked to recommend approval of the revised bylaws with ratification of them occurring at our Annual Meeting next year. See <u>attached</u>.
- 3. Library report Heather Walsh
- 4. Treasurer's and Finance Report Kendra Epley
  - a. US Bank (formerly Union Bank) & Beacon Pointe balances.
  - b. Schedule for meeting of Investment Committee with BP.
  - c. Shift of Treasurer's duties to CPA and his assistant See attached.
  - d. Draft FOML FY 23/24 budget See attached.
- 5. Annual appeal letter and report Draft of the FY 22/23 Annual Report will be distributed before the meeting and discussed. This report with a donation envelope will be mailed to all 93108, 93150 and 93067 addresses in a month or so.

# 6. Board miscellaneous:

- a. Meeting with Montecito Association's new Executive Director
- b. Membership roll out in 2024 and how to handle?
- c. Annual meeting in the spring including election of directors
- d. Recruitment of new Board members

# 7. Marketing & Communications Committee Report

- a. Donation Report
- b. MJ monthly column
- **c.** Montecito writers book as gifts to \$500 and up donors Suggest book pick up at library? Cost is approx.. \$10/each. Put FOML stickers in them first. Other logistics.

# 8. Future agenda items:

- a. Book donations Coordination with local realtors re book donations.
- b. FOML sponsored Free libraries In addition to free library at East Valley/San Ysidro, suggested new location includes Cold Spring School.
- **c.** 1 page handout for estate planning Kendra will bring samples to the meeting.
- **9.** Next meeting dates Thursday, January 11<sup>th</sup>, 2024, at 10:30 am. Set 2024 calendar at that meeting.